HINCKLEY AND BOSWORTH BOROUGH COUNCIL

PLANNING COMMITTEE

20 OCTOBER 2015 AT 6.30 PM

PRESENT: Mr R Ward - Chairman

Mr LJP O'Shea – Vice-Chairman

Mr RG Allen, Mr Bessant, Mr DC Bill MBE, Mrs MA Cook, Mrs L Hodgkins, Mr E Hollick, Mrs J Kirby, Mr K Morrell (for Ms AV Wright), Mr K Nichols (for Ms BM Witherford), Mr RB Roberts, Mr SL Rooney, Mrs H Smith and Mr BE Sutton

In accordance with Council Procedure Rule 4.4 Councillors Mr MA Hall were also in attendance.

Officers in attendance: Simon Atha, Joseph Matharu, Rebecca Owen, Michael Rice and Nic Thomas

211 APOLOGIES AND SUBSTITUTIONS

Apologies for absence were submitted on behalf of Councillors Mrs Cope, Witherford and Wright, with the following substitutions authorised in accordance with Council Procedure Rule 4:

Councillor Nichols for Councillor Mrs Cope Councillor Cartwright for Councillor Witherford Councillor Morrell for Councillor Wright.

212 <u>MINUTES</u>

It was moved by Councillor Bill, seconded by Councillor Allen and

<u>RESOLVED</u> – the minutes of the meeting held on 22 September be confirmed and signed by the Chairman.

213 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

No interests were declared at this stage.

214 DECISIONS DELEGATED AT PREVIOUS MEETING

It was reported that all decisions delegated at the previous meeting had been issued.

215 <u>15/00570/FUL - STRETTON HOUSE, WATLING STREET, BURBAGE</u>

Application for change of use of residential to mixed use of premises to provide accommodation and meeting and teaching facilities, extensions and alterations, alterations to access and provision of associated car parking.

Notwithstanding the officer's recommendation that permission be granted subject to conditions and a unilateral undertaking, members felt that the intensity of use, particularly at the weekend, and the traffic that would be generated, would be detrimental to residential amenity and highway safety. It was moved by Councillor Rooney and seconded by Councillor Roberts that the application be refused for these reasons. Upon being put to the vote the motion was CARRIED and unanimously

<u>RESOLVED</u> – the application be refused for reasons of impact on highway safety and residential amenity.

Councillors Hall and Rooney left the meeting at 6.52pm.

216 <u>15/00186/COU - 40D RATBY LANE, MARKFIELD</u>

Application for part change of use of dwelling to nursery/childcare.

Notwithstanding the officer's recommendation that permission be granted, some members felt that the proximity to neighbours and the intensified use of the private driveway made this an unsuitable location for this business. It was moved by Councillor Bessant and seconded by Councillor O'Shea that permission be refused for this reason. Upon being put to the vote, the motion was CARRIED and it was

<u>RESOLVED</u> – the application be refused on grounds of detriment to residential amenity and highway safety.

217 <u>15/00416/FUL - THE OLD HOUSE FARM, SUTTON LANE, CADEBY</u>

Application for cessation of the architectural salvage and reclamation yard and removal of existing poultry buildings for the erection of 8 dwellings and associated works.

Due to additional information which had come to light about the control of the use of the reclamation yard and the length of time it had been operating, it was moved by Councillor Cook and seconded by Councillor Nichols that the application be deferred. Upon being put to the vote the motion was CARRIED and it was

 $\underline{\mathsf{RESOLVED}}$ – the application be deferred to allow further consideration of the abovementioned matters.

218 <u>15/00633/FUL - LAND AT REAR OF 4 PIPE LANE, ORTON ON THE HILL,</u> <u>ATHERSTONE</u>

Application for erection of 2 dwellings and garages.

Some members expressed concern regarding the height of the proposed properties and felt that the information and drawings that had been presented were insufficient to be able to make a decision. Councillor Cartwright, seconded by Councillor Morrell, proposed that the application be deferred in order to request this information.

Following officer advice, it was moved by Councillor O'Shea and seconded by Councillor Nichols that the decision be delegated to officers in consultation with the Chairman and the Ward Councillor to approve on receipt of the requested plans, or bring back to committee should they not be happy with the aforementioned plans.

Councillors Cartwright and Morrell agreed to withdraw the motion to defer the application on the condition that the ward councillor consults with residents via the person who made representations at the meeting on behalf of the objectors, which was subsequently agreed.

Upon being put to the vote, Councillor O'Shea's motion to delegate the decision was CARRIED and it was unanimously

<u>RESOLVED</u> – the decision be delegated to officers in consultation with the Chairman and the Ward Councillor following consultation with residents.

219 <u>15/00694/FUL - ASDA, BARWELL LANE, HINCKLEY</u>

It was reported that this application had been deferred following a late objection being received from the Environment Agency to allow the applicant the opportunity to address the concerns.

220 15/00624/CONDIT - 1 BURTON ROAD, TWYCROSS, ATHERSTONE

Application for variation of condition 2 of planning permission 10/00133/FUL to allow for the removal of two car parking spaces.

Notwithstanding the officer's recommendation that the application be approved, some members felt that there was no evidence that the spaces were not required, and there were in fact parking problems in the area, partly due to a requirement for parking spaces for these properties over and above what had been provided. It was moved by Councillor Morrell and seconded by Councillor Cartwright that the application be refused for reasons of loss of residential amenity. The motion was CARRIED and it was

<u>RESOLVED</u> – the application be refused on grounds of loss of residential amenity.

221 APPEAL DECISIONS

It was moved by Councillor Allen, seconded by Councillor Cartwright and

RESOLVED – the report be noted.

222 APPEALS PROGRESS

It was moved by Councillor Allen, seconded by Councillor Cartwright and

<u>RESOLVED</u> – the report be noted.

223 DELEGATED DECISIONS ISSUED

It was moved by Councillor Cartwright, seconded by Councillor Allen and

<u>RESOLVED</u> – the report be noted.

(The Meeting closed at 8.15 pm)

CHAIRMAN